

# GAMMA KNIFE RADIOSURGERY CENTER

# DOW UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES

# STRATEGIC PLAN

(2024 - 2027)

**Pioneering Excellence | Inspiring Innovation** 



# To Heal | To Educate | To Discover



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Director's Message5
Executive Summary7
About the Institute8
Introduction & Overview9
Organogram10
Current Staff1
Section I: Overview of the Strategic Planning Process
Section II: Vision, Mission, and Values13
Section III: Aspirational Institutions15
Section IV: Strategic Goals17
Objectives, OKRs & KPIs19
Section V: Resource Planning for Achieving Strategic Goals29
Section VI: Implementation and Monitoring of Strategic Plan30
Section VII: List of Appendices
A: SWOT Analysis
B: TOWS Matrix
C: Sub-Committees for Strategic Plan

### DIRECTOR'S MESSAGE



As we stand at the threshold of an era defined by innovation and precision in neurosurgical care, it is with great commitment and vision that we present the Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre's Strategic Plan (2024-2027). This document serves as our guiding blueprint, ensuring that we continue to deliver cutting-edge, non-invasive treatments while addressing the economic, operational, and technological challenges that lie ahead. At Dow University Hospital's Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre, our mission is to revolutionize in Pakistan through world-class neurosurgical care technology, multidisciplinary expertise, and patient-centered treatment. However. fulfilling this mission requires not just clinical excellence but also a wellstructured strategy that ensures sustainability, efficiency, and continuous growth.

To expand access to advanced healthcare, we are implementing telemedicine services to reach underserved patients and launching awareness campaigns to highlight the cost-effectiveness and precision of Gamma Knife radiosurgery. Enhancing clinical excellence remains a priority, with investments in Al-driven predictive analytics and augmented reality training programs to optimize treatment protocols and skill development. Additionally, fostering innovation and technological advancement will be driven by an Innovation Committee dedicated to evaluating emerging technologies, as well as strategic collaborations with global research institutions to enhance treatment methodologies.

Recognizing the importance of strengthening partnerships, we aim to work closely with insurance providers to enhance affordability and establish a referral management system to streamline patient access, both locally and internationally. Ensuring financial sustainability and operational efficiency will require the integration of AI-driven resource optimization to manage costs effectively. These initiatives will allow us to manage patient volumes efficiently while maintaining the highest standards of care.

The journey ahead is ambitious, but with a shared vision and strategic execution, we are confident that the Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre will continue to lead in precision neurosurgery. Our commitment to technological advancement, operational excellence, and patient-centered care will ensure that we remain at the forefront of global radiological practice. As we embark on this transformative journey, I invite all stakeholders—patients, staff, partners, and the broader community—to join

hands with us. Together, we can redefine neurosurgical care in Pakistan and set new benchmarks for quality and innovation in public healthcare.

**Dr Muhammad Abid Saleem** Director Dow Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre Dow University Hospital

# EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

At Dow University Hospital's Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre, we are redefining neurosurgical care in Pakistan. Our state-of-the-art facility offers non-invasive treatment for brain lesions and tumors using advanced Gamma Knife technology. What sets us apart is our precision-focused approach. Led by a highly skilled team of neurosurgeons, radiation oncologists, medical physicists, and radiation therapy technologists, we deliver targeted therapy with minimal impact on healthy tissues. Through innovation and a steadfast commitment to patient well-being, we're not just raising the bar in healthcare standards, but also providing compassionate and cutting-edge care to those who need it most.

# ABOUT THE INSTITUTE

Dow University Hospital's Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre is Pakistan's inaugural public sector facility, equipped with the latest in Gamma Knife technology to treat brain lesions and tumors non-invasively. Distinguished by its status as a non-invasive modality, the Gamma Knife technique eliminates the need for traditional incisions, thereby mitigating associated discomfort and recovery periods. The treatment hallmark lies in its capacity to deliver an intense dose of gamma radiation with pinpoint accuracy, ensuring the targeted area is treated while minimizing impact on healthy adjacent tissues. This cutting-edge approach, led by a skilled multidisciplinary team of neurosurgeons, radiation oncologists, medical physicists, and radiation therapy technologists, ensures targeted treatment with minimal impact on healthy tissue. The center's commitment to innovation and patient well-being underscores its pivotal role in elevating public healthcare standards.

The Dow University Hospital's Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre marks a significant stride forward in Pakistan's healthcare landscape, particularly within the public sector. As the nation's inaugural public-sector facility of its kind, it stands as a beacon of innovation and progress, equipped with the latest advancements in medical technology, notably the state-of-the-art Leksell Gamma Knife Icon system. This cutting-edge technology empowers the Centre to offer non-invasive treatment for a wide array of brain lesions and tumors with unparalleled precision and efficacy.

At Dow University Hospital's Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre, our mission is to serve the public by providing access to advanced medical care that was once reserved for private institutions. Through strategic partnerships and governmental support, the Centre ensures that patients from all walks of life have access to world-class treatment options, regardless of their financial means.

### **INTRODUCTION & OVERVIEW**

The Dow University Hospital's Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre in Pakistan is the first public facility offering advanced, non-invasive brain lesion treatment. Precise gamma radiation targets specific areas without harming surrounding healthy tissues. The center is led by neurosurgery and radiation oncology experts, emphasizing innovative care and elevating healthcare standards.

The Centre's focus on innovation is evident in its multidisciplinary approach to healthcare delivery. Led by a team of highly skilled neurosurgeons, radiation oncologists, medical physicists, and radiation therapy technologists, the Centre leverages collective expertise to tailor treatment plans to each patient's unique needs. This collaborative effort ensures that individuals receive the highest standard of care while minimizing the risk of complications and maximizing positive outcomes.

The Gamma Knife Centre's scope of services extends beyond the treatment of brain lesions and tumors to encompass a comprehensive range of neurological conditions. From primary brain tumors such as gliomas and meningioma to neurological disorders like trigeminal neuralgia and essential tremors, the Centre offers cutting-edge solutions for patients facing diverse medical challenges.

In essence, the Dow University Hospital's Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre represents a paradigm shift in Pakistan's healthcare paradigm. By combining a focus on public-sector accessibility with innovative technology and a commitment to excellence, the Centre exemplifies the future of medical care in the country, where every patient could receive world-class treatment close to home.

**Diseases Treated:** 

- Acoustic neuroma/Vestibular Schwannoma
- Pituitary tumor
- Craniopharyngioma
- Glioma
- Meningioma
- Hemangioblastoma
- Glomus jugular tumor
- Chordoma
- Pediatric brain tumors
- Arteriovenous malformation
- Trigeminal neuralgia
- Essential tremor
- Epilepsy
- Obsessive-compulsive disorder

# ORGANOGRAM



# **Current Staffing**

S.No:	Designation	No of Positions
1	Neurosurgeon	2
2	Radiation Oncologist	1
3	Administrator	1
4	SMO	1
5	Medical Physicist	1
6	Nursing	3
7	Senior RTT	1
8	RTT	3
9	Coordinator	1
10	Marketing Officer	1
11	Receptionist	1

# SECTION I: OVERVIEW OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS

Conducted a thorough analysis of both internal and external factors, including strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT), market trends, competitor activities, regulatory requirements, and technological advancements.

#### Stakeholder Engagement:

• Engagement with stakeholders such as patients, healthcare professionals, government agencies, and community organizations to understand their needs, expectations, and concerns, informing strategic priorities and initiatives.

#### Goal Setting:

• Established specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound (SMART) goals based on insights gathered from the environmental analysis and stakeholder engagement process, serving as benchmarks for tracking progress.

#### Strategy Formulation:

 Developed strategies aimed at achieving the established goals, focusing on areas such as expanding service offerings, enhancing technology infrastructure, improving patient access, and strengthening partnerships with other healthcare providers.

#### Performance Monitoring and Evaluation:

• Defined key performance indicators (KPIs) to measure progress towards goals, conduct regular reviews and evaluations to assess performance, identify areas for improvement, and make necessary adjustments to the strategic plan.

#### Continuous Improvement:

 Embrace a culture of continuous improvement by conducting ongoing reviews and updates to adapt to changing circumstances and emerging opportunities, ensuring responsiveness to the evolving healthcare landscape and maintaining the delivery of high-quality care to the public. SECTION II:

### **VISION, MISSION & VALUES**

#### VISION

To be a pre-eminent academic institution committed to changing and saving lives.

#### MISSION

Providing outstanding patient-centered education, training, and clinical care informed by cutting-edge research and innovation, generating and disseminating new knowledge



#### VALUES

- Customer Service
  - o Put patients first
- Empathy & Compassion
  - Understand before you judge
  - Be concerned for the sufferings and misfortunes of others
- Excellence
  - Be the best and commit to exceptional quality and service
- Innovation
  - Encourage curiosity, imagine, create, and share
- Teamwork
  - Engage and collaborate
- Integrity & Leadership
  - o Be a role model and influence others to achieve their best
  - Have the courage to do the right thing
  - Hold yourself and others accountable
- Respect & Collegiality
  - o Be kind
  - Listen to understand
  - Value different opinions

#### STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Our mission at Dow University Hospital's Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre is to revolutionize neurosurgical care in Pakistan by offering state-of-the-art, non-invasive treatment for brain lesions and tumors. Through precisionfocused Gamma Knife technology, our multidisciplinary team aims to deliver targeted therapy with minimal impact on healthy tissues, ensuring superior patient outcomes. Committed to innovation and patient well-being, we strive to elevate public healthcare standards and provide compassionate, cutting-edge care to those in need.

## SECTION III: ASPIRATIONAL INSTITUTIONS

Several institutions worldwide are recognized as aspirational leaders in Gamma Knife Radiosurgery, setting benchmarks in clinical excellence, research, and innovation. These institutions exemplify the best practices, cutting-edge technology integration, and impactful patient care.

#### 1. University of Pittsburgh Medical Center (UPMC), USA

- A global pioneer in Gamma Knife radiosurgery, UPMC has one of the largest and most advanced \*\*Gamma Knife programs\*\* worldwide.
- Home to Dr. L. Dade Lunsford, a leading expert in radiosurgery.
- Pioneering research in functional neurosurgery, treating movement disorders, pain syndromes, and brain tumors.

#### 2. Karolinska University Hospital, Sweden

- The birthplace of Gamma Knife technology, founded by Professor Lars Leksell, the inventor of stereotactic radiosurgery.
- Continues to be a global reference center for training neurosurgeons and radiation oncologists.

#### 3. Cleveland Clinic, USA

- A world-class center specializing in brain metastases, trigeminal neuralgia, and arteriovenous malformations (AVMs)using Gamma Knife.
- Integrates AI-based treatment planning and advanced imaging for ultra-precise targeting.
- Multidisciplinary approach combining neurosurgery, radiation oncology, and neuro-oncology.

#### 4. Mayo Clinic, USA

- Known for its high-volume Gamma Knife practice with a strong focus on clinical trials and outcome-based research.
- One of the first institutions to introduce \*\*Gamma Knife Icon\*\*, enabling frameless radiosurgery and adaptive treatments.
- Advanced data analytics and AI-driven patient outcome tracking.

#### 5. MD Anderson Cancer Center, USA

- Leading research center for Gamma Knife applications in primary and metastatic brain tumors.
- Focus on integrating radiosurgery with immunotherapy and targeted therapy.
- Collaborates with global research institutions for clinical trials and new treatment protocols.

#### 6. Tokyo Women's Medical University, Japan

- One of the leading Gamma Knife centers in Asia, offering highly specialized treatments.
- Strong focus on functional neurosurgery, including pain management and movement disorders.
- Research-driven institution pioneering new protocols for hypofractionated Gamma Knife treatments.

#### 7. Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, UK

- One of the largest and most experienced Gamma Knife centers in Europe.
- Known for its expertise in vascular malformations, benign tumors, and functional neurosurgery.
- Strong academic collaborations with global institutions for radiosurgery advancements.
- 8. Koç University Hospital Neurosurgery & amp; Gamma Knife Unit (Istanbul)
  - A leading academic hospital known for high-quality research and innovation in radiosurgery.
  - Provides fellowship training for neurosurgeons and radiation oncologists specializing in Stereotactic radiosurgery.

### SECTION IV: STRATEGIC GOALS

#### Goal I: Expanding Access to Advanced Healthcare Services

**Objective 1:** Launch telemedicine services for initial consultations and follow-ups, targeting rural and international patients.

**Objective 2:** Conduct targeted awareness campaigns highlighting the precision and cost-effectiveness of Gamma Knife technology.

**Objective 3:** Collaborate with insurance providers and public health programs to offer subsidized treatment plans.

#### Goal II: Enhance Clinical Excellence and Patient Outcomes

**Objective 1**: Establish a comprehensive staff training program using AI and AR/VR technologies.

**Objective 2:** Standardize treatment protocols utilizing AI-driven predictive analytics.

**Objective 3:** Implement patient feedback mechanisms and satisfaction surveys.

#### Goal III: Foster Innovation and Technological Advancement

**Objective 1:** Form an innovation task force to evaluate and integrate cutting-edge technologies.

**Objective 2:** Collaborate with global research institutions for data-sharing and joint research initiatives.

**Objective 3:** Invest in advanced imaging systems such as Alenhanced imaging.

**Objective 4:** Secure patient data and streamline research collaborations using blockchain technology.

# Goal IV: Strengthening Collaborative Partnerships and Stakeholder Engagement.

**Objective 1:** Develop a CRM system to strengthen engagement with stakeholders and referring physicians.

**Objective 2:** Partner with community organizations, academic institutions, and government agencies.

**Objective 3:** Host regular stakeholder meetings and distribute newsletters.

#### Goal V: Ensure Financial Sustainability and Operational Efficiency

**Objective 1:** Implement workflow automation and robotic process automation (RPA).

**Objective 2:** Use predictive analytics to anticipate high patient volumes.

**Objective 3:** Conduct regular financial reviews to identify costsaving opportunities.

**Objective 4:** Develop pricing models balancing affordability and sustainability.

## **OBJECTIVES, OKRs & KPIs**

Strategic Goal 1: Expand Access to Advanced Healthcare Services

Goal Statement: Broaden patient reach through telemedicine, awareness campaigns, and financial accessibility initiatives.

OKR (Objective and Key Results)

Objective 1: Launch telemedicine services for initial consultations and follow-ups, targeting rural and international patients.

Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Launch telemedicine services for initial consultations and follow- ups, targeting	KR1.1: Implement telemedicine infrastructure by Q3 2025.				Dr Sohail, Mr. Fawad.		Q3 2025.
	KR 1.2: Achieve a 20% increase in consultations from rural areas by Q1 2026.	Quarterly telemedicine consultations from rural and international patients toward 500	Telemedicine platform usage reports.	500 consultations annually by Q4 2026.	Nill	Experienced I.T. personals.	
rural and international patients.	KR 1.3: Reach 500 telemedicine consultations annually by 2026.	annual targets.			Nill		

Objective 2: (	Conduct targeted	awareness camp	aigns highlightir technolog	ng the precision y.	and cost-effect	iveness of Gamr	na Knife
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Conduct	KR 2.1: Organize 3 awareness seminars by Q4 2025.		Monthly inquiry logs from marketing and admin	25% increase in inquiries within one year of campaign launch.	Dr Amjad/ Mr. Fawad	Will need to engage persons with	
awareness campaigns highlighting the precision and cost- effectiveness of Gamma Knife technology.	KR 2.2: Distribute campaign materials to 50 healthcare facilities by Q2 2026.	Increase in patient inquiries following Gamma Knife awareness outreach.			Nill	Digital Media.	Q4 2025.
	KR 2.3: Increase patient inquiries by 25% within 12 months of campaign launch.				Nill		
Objective :	3: Collaborate with	) insurance provi	iders and public	health programs	to offer subsid	lized treatment	plans.
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Collaborate	KR 3.1: Establish partnerships with 3 insurance providers by Q4 2025.				Dr Amjad		
with insurance providers and public health programs to offer subsidized treatment plans.	KR 3.2: Develop and implement a subsidy framework for low-income patients by Q1 2026.	working with all insurance partners dealing with DUHS.	Insurance claim reports and subsidy application data.	30% increase in subsidized admissions by 2025.	Nill	Nil	Q4 2025.
	KR 3.3: Increase subsidized patient admissions by 30% by Q4 2026.	ру t			Nill		

#### Strategic Goal 2: Enhance Clinical Excellence and Patient Outcomes

# Goal Statement: Enhance clinical quality and outcomes through staff development, standardized care, and patient-centered feedback.

OKR (Objective and Key Results)

Objective 1: Establish a comprehensive staff training program using AI and AR/VR technologies.

Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Establish a comprehensive staff training program using AI and AR/VR technologies.	KR1.1: Implement AR/VR-based training modules by Q2 2025.	Number of		100% of staff trained by Q3 2026; 40% improvement in competency scores by Q4 2026.	Dr. S Khoula, Dr. Sohail	Nil	
	KR 1.2: Conduct training sessions for 100% of clinical staff by Q3 2026.	training sessions conducted staff competency scores. (No sessions)	Training attendance logs and post-training assessments.		SMO		Q2 2025.
	KR 1.3: Increase staff competency scores by 40% by Q4 2026.				SMO		

Objective 2: Standardize treatment protocols utilizing AI-driven predictive analytics.

Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Standardize treatment protocols utilizing AI- driven predictive analytics.	KR 2.1: Develop Al-supported treatment guidelines by Q3 2026.		Clinical audit	80% adherence to protocols by Q4 2025.	Dr Abid Saleem	Need dedicated people for Data Handling and	Q2
	KR 2.2: Train 80% of staff on new protocols by Q2 2026.	Percentage of cases adhering to			HOD		
	KR 2.3: Reduce treatment planning errors by 25% by Q4 2026.	standardīzed protocols.	reports.		HOD	Analysts.	2025.

Objective 3: Implement patient feedback mechanisms and satisfaction surveys.									
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline		
Implement patient feedback mechanisms and satisfaction surveys.	KR 3.1: Launch digital patient feedback surveys by Q2 2025. KR 3.2: Achieve a 90% response rate for patient satisfaction surveys by Q4 2026. KR 3.3: Increase overall patient satisfaction scores by 20% within one year of implementation.	Patient satisfaction scores.	Feedback forms and digital survey reports.	90% patient satisfaction by Q4 2026.	Mr. Fawad, Miss Aleena Patel.	Nil	Q2 2025.		

Strategic Goal 3: Foster Innovation and Technological Advancement										
Goal Si	tatement: Adopt er	nerging technol	medical innova	research parthe ation.	ersnips to stay a	t the forefront o	Dr			
OKR (Objective and Key Results)										
Objective 1: Form an innovation task force to evaluate and integrate cutting-edge technologies.										
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline			
Form an innovation task force to evaluate and integrate cutting-edge technologies.	KR1.1: Establish the innovation task force by Q1 2025.				Dr. Khauola, DrAtif, Dr. Sohail,	Nil				
	KR 1.2: Review 5 emerging technologies for potential integration annually.	Number of technologies evaluated and implemented.	Innovation task force reports.	Implement 2 technologies by Q4 2026.	SMO		Q1 2025.			
	KR 1.3: Implement 2 new technologies by Q4 2026.				SMO					

Objective 2: Collaborate with global research institutions for data-sharing and joint research initiatives.									
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline		
Collaborate with global	KR 2.1: Establish partnerships with 3 global research institutions by Q2 2025.	Number of	Decearch	Publish 5 joint papers	Dr M Abid Saleem				
institutions for data- sharing and joint research initiatives.	KR 2.2: Publish 5 joint research papers by Q4 2026.	joint research projects and publications.	project and publication records.	and complete 3 collaborative projects by Q1 2027.	RTT	Nil	Q2 2025.		
	KR 2.3: Conduct 3 collaborative projects by Q1 2027.				RTT				
Objective 3: Invest in advanced imaging systems such as AI-enhanced imaging									
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline		
Invest in advanced imaging systems such as Al- enhanced imaging.	KR 3.1: Procure and implement Al-enhanced imaging equipment by Q3 2025.				Shahzeb Naeem				
	KR 3.2: Train 100% of relevant staff on the new equipment by Q1 2026.	Error reduction rate in imaging.	Imaging error logs.	30% error reduction by Q4 2026.	SMO	Nil	Q3 2025.		
	KR 3.3: Reduce imaging errors by 30% within 12 months of implementation.				SMO				

Objective 4: Secure patient data and streamline research collaborations using blockchain technology.									
Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline			
R 4.1: Deploy ockchain for patient data curity by Q2 2025. R 4.2: Ensure 100% compliance with data protection tandards by Q4 2025. KR 4.3: Facilitate 10 ecure data- sharing	Data security compliance rate.	Data security audit reports.	100% compliance with data security standards by Q4 2025.	Shahzaib Naeem	Nil	Q2 2025.			
	ey Results 4.1: Deploy bockchain for atient data :urity by Q2 2025. 4.2: Ensure 100% ompliance with data protection andards by Q4 2025. KR 4.3: acilitate 10 ecure data- sharing instances nnually by 2026	ey ResultsKPI4.1: Deploy pockchain for atient data :urity by Q2 2025.Data security compliance with data protection andards by Q4 2025.KR 4.3: acilitate 10 ecure data- sharing instances nnually byData security compliance rate.	ey ResultsKPIMeasurement Method4.1: Deploy beckchain for atient data :urity by Q2 2025.Image: Complete the security compliance with data protection andards by Q4 2025.Data security compliance rate.Data security audit reports.KR 4.3: acilitate 10 ecure data- sharing instances nnually byMeasurement MethodData security audit reports.	ey ResultsKPIMeasurement MethodTarget4.1: Deploy beckchain for atient data :urity by Q2 2025	ey ResultsKPIMeasurement MethodTargetPerson Responsible4.1: Deploy ockchain for atient data curity by Q2 2025.AAAA4.2: Ensure 100% ompliance with data protection andards by Q4 2025.Data security compliance rate.Data security audit reports.100% compliance with data security 	ey ResultsKPIMeasurement MethodTargetPerson ResponsibleResource Requirement4.1: Deploy ckchain for atient data :urity by Q2 2025.Data security cheat audit reports.Data security audit reports.100% compliance with data security standards by Q4 2025.Data security audit reports.100% compliance with data security standards by Q4 2025.Nil			

#### Strategic Goal 4: Strengthen Collaborative Partnerships and Stakeholder Engagement

Goal Statement: Build robust relationships with stakeholders through digital tools, partnerships, and consistent communication.

OKR (Objective and Key Results)

Objective 1: Develop a CRM system to strengthen engagement with stakeholders and referring physicians.

Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Develop a CRM system to strengthen engagemen t with stakeholder s and referring physicians.	KR1.1: Implement a CRM system by Q1 2025.			20% increase in referrals within 12 months of implement ation.	Dr Amjad, Mr. Fawad	Nil	
	KR 1.2: Increase stakeholder interactions by 50% by Q4 2025.	Increase in patient referrals.	Referral logs are tracked in CRM.		marketing lead		Q1 2025.
	KR 1.3: Achieve a 20% increase in patient referrals within 12 months of CRM implementatio n.				marketing lead		

Objective 2: Partner with community organizations, academic institutions, and government agencies.

Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Partners with community organizatio ns, academic institutions, and governmen t agencies.	KR 2.1: Sign 5 MOUs with relevant organizations by Q2 2025.						
	KR 2.2: Conduct 10 collaborative events or projects annually by 2026.	Number of signed MOUs and collaborativ e events.	Partnership agreement records.	5 MOUs signed and 10 events annually by Q4 2026.	Dr Amjad, Hospital Administration	Nil	Q2 2025.
	KR 2.3: Increase funding or resources from partnerships by 30% by Q4 2027.						

Objective 3: Host regular stakeholder meetings and distribute newsletters.							
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
	KR 3.1: Conduct quarterly stakeholder meetings starting Q2 2025.						
Host regular stakeholder meetings and distribute newsletters.	KR 3.2: Distribute monthly newsletters with a 70% open rate by Q1 2026.	Stakeholder engagement rate.	Attendance at meetings and newsletter open rates.	70% engageme nt rate by Q4 2026.	Dr Sohail, Dr Amjad	Nil	Q2 2025.
	KR 3.3: Achieve a 30% increase in stakeholder engagement metrics by Q4 2027						

Strategic Goal 5: Ensure Financial Sustainability and Operational Efficiency Gal Statement: Optimize resources and financial health through automation, data-driven planning, and sustainable pricing. **OKR (Objective and Key Results)** Objective 1: Implement workflow automation and robotic process automation (RPA). Measurement Person Resource **KPI** Objective **Key Results** Target Timeline Method Requirement Responsible KR1.1: Automate 50% of scheduling and inventory processes by Q2 2025. Implement KR 1.2: Reduce workflow 30% Reduction in manual reduction automation Operational Nil administrative manual Shahzaib Q2 and robotic efficiency in manual tasks by 30% by administrative Naeem 2025. process reports. tasks by Q4 2025. tasks. Q4 2025. automation (RPA). KR 1.3: Improve resource utilization by 20% within one year of implementation. Measurement Person Resource **KPI** Timeline Objective **Key Results** Target Method Responsible Requirement KR 2.1: Develop a predictive analytics system by Q3 2025. KR 2.2: Reduce Use patient wait Appointment 25% predictive times by 25% Reduction in scheduling Nil reduction analytics to Q4 within 12 months patient wait and in waiting Dr Amjad 2025. anticipate of times by throughput times. high patient implementation. data. Q4 2026. volumes. KR 2.3: Improve throughput by 15% by Q4 2026.

Objective 3: Conduct regular financial reviews to identify cost-saving opportunities.							
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Conduct regular financial reviews to identify cost- saving opportunities	KR 3.1: Perform biannual financial audits starting Q2 2025. KR 3.2: Identify and implement cost-saving measures worth 10% of the operational budget annually. KR 3.3: Increase operational profitability by 15% by Q4 2026.	Cost savings as a percentage of the budget.	Financial audit reports.	Achieve 10% cost savings annually.	Dr Abid Saleem Dr Amjad	Nil	Biannual reviews starting Q2 2025.
	Objective 4:	Develop pricing n	nodels balancing	affordability	and sustainabi	lity.	
Objective	Key Results	KPI	Measurement Method	Target	Person Responsible	Resource Requirement	Timeline
Develop pricing models balancing affordability and sustainability.	KR 4.1: Create tiered pricing structures by Q2 2025. KR 4.2: Increase revenue from mid-tier and subsidized services by 20% by Q4 2026.	Patient satisfaction with pricing.	Patient satisfaction surveys.	95% satisfactio n rate by Q4 2027.	Dr Amjad	Nil	Q2 2025.

# SECTION V: RESOURCE PLANNING FOR ACHIEVING STRATEGIC GOALS

To successfully implement the strategic goals outlined, the Gamma Knife Department will require a comprehensive and integrated approach to resource planning. Human resources will play a critical role, with the need to hire specialized personnel such as telemedicine coordinators, IT support staff, and data analysts, while also investing in continuous training programs. These training initiatives will focus on advanced technologies, including AI, AR/VR for staff development, and familiarization with new imaging systems. Additionally, a dedicated innovative task force and stakeholder engagement team will be established to drive forward technological integration and partnership building.

Technological infrastructure will be a cornerstone of success, necessitating investment in secure telehealth platforms, customer relationship management (CRM) systems, AI-powered imaging tools, predictive analytics software, and blockchain solutions for data security and research collaboration. Workflow optimization will be addressed through the implementation of robotic process automation (RPA) tools, improving efficiency and reducing administrative burdens.

Financially, a strategic allocation of the department's budget will be essential. Funds will be earmarked for marketing campaigns, patient education, staff upskilling, and procurement of advanced technologies. Additional resources will be directed toward the development of sustainable pricing models and subsidized care programs in collaboration with insurance providers. Regular financial reviews and ROI assessments will be conducted to ensure fiscal responsibility and the identification of cost-saving opportunities.

Partnership development will be supported through formal collaborations with insurance companies, public health programs, academic institutions, and community organizations. These partnerships will extend the department's reach, enhance research capabilities, and support community engagement. Finally, a strong monitoring and evaluation framework will be implemented, using key performance indicators (KPIs), dashboards, and routine strategic reviews to assess progress across all strategic goals, ensuring accountability and continuous improvement.

### SECTION VI: IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING OF STRATEGIC PLAN

GOALS	IMPLEMENTATION	MONITORING
Expanding Access to Advanced Healthcare Services	<ul> <li>Launch targeted marketing campaigns to raise awareness of Gamma Knife radiosurgery.</li> <li>Conduct educational seminars and workshops for referring physicians and healthcare professionals.</li> <li>Establish telemedicine infrastructure to facilitate remote consultations and follow-ups.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Track patient referrals and service utilization rates from different sources.</li> <li>Monitor attendance and feedback from educational events and outreach programs.</li> </ul>
Enhance Clinical Excellence and Patient Outcomes	<ul> <li>Provide ongoing training and professional development opportunities for staff.</li> <li>Implement quality improvement initiatives, such as clinical pathway development and peer review processes.</li> <li>Implement patient feedback mechanisms and conduct regular satisfaction surveys.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Monitor staff participation in training programs and evaluate skill acquisition.</li> <li>Track clinical outcomes and adherence to standardized protocols.</li> <li>Review patient feedback and satisfaction scores to identify areas for improvement.</li> </ul>
Foster Innovation and Technological Advancement	<ul> <li>Create a dedicated innovation committee or task force to drive innovation initiatives.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Track the progress of technology implementation projects and research collaborations.</li> <li>Evaluate the impact of innovative solutions on patient outcomes and operational efficiency.</li> <li>Review feedback from staff and stakeholders regarding the effectiveness of innovative initiatives.</li> </ul>

Strengthening Collaborative Partnerships and Stakeholder Engagement	<ul> <li>Identify opportunities for collaboration and joint initiatives with partner organizations.</li> <li>Develop strategies to engage with patient advocacy groups and community organizations.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Monitor engagement levels and participation in collaborative activities.</li> <li>Assess the impact of partnerships on patient care delivery and community outreach.</li> <li>Solicit feedback from stakeholders to evaluate the effectiveness of engagement strategies.</li> </ul>
Ensure Financial Sustainability and Operational Efficiency	<ul> <li>Develop and implement financial management policies and procedures.</li> <li>Conduct regular financial audits and performance reviews.</li> <li>Implement operational efficiency measures to optimize resource utilization.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Monitor financial metrics such as revenue, expenses, and profitability.</li> <li>Review operational performance indicators such as wait times, resource utilization, and throughput.</li> <li>Conduct periodic reviews to identify opportunities for cost savings and process improvements.</li> </ul>

# SECTION VII: LIST OF APPENDICES

No.	DESCRIPTION
A	SWOT ANALYSIS
В	TOWS MATRIX
С	Committee Structure

# APPENDIX A: SWOT ANALYSIS

	STRENGTHS		WEAKNESSES
<ol> <li>Gam Cent com effect imple man leven the h high affor</li> <li>Resp adva prec treat</li> <li>The profecent patie</li> </ol>	ima Knife Radiosurgery cre stands out for its mitment to providing cost- ctive healthcare solutions. By ementing efficient agement practices and raging economies of scale, nospital manages to deliver -quality medical services at rdable rates. Donsibility for embracing anced technology, offering ision and non-invasive tments for brain disorders. expertise of medical essionals contributes to the er's reputation and attracts ents seeking specialized care.	1. 2. 3.	High initial costs and maintenance expenses of Gamma Knife technology potentially limit the center's reach. Staffing challenges impacting recruitment and retention of specialized personnel in the context of economic constraints. Like many healthcare institutions, Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre may face challenges related to resource constraints, impacting the accessibility of advanced treatments and services. The department may experience high patient volumes, leading to potential challenges in managing waiting times and providing personalized care.
	OPPORTUNITIES		THREATS
<ol> <li>Pote touri cont med</li> <li>Colla instit healt man</li> <li>Strat healt insur patie ecor</li> </ol>	ential to attract medical ists as a revenue booster and cributor to Pakistan's growing ical tourism industry. aboration with research tutions to advance thcare in a resource-efficient ner. tegic partnerships with thcare institutions and rance providers to enhance ent referrals, aligning with nomic realities.	1. 2. 3.	Increased competition from other SRS-based radiotherapy centers' prestige and marketing tactics. Complex adherence to healthcare and nuclear regulations due to the evolving economic landscape. The threat of economic instability impacts the affordability of advanced medical treatments and the center's sustainability.

# APPENDIX B: TOWS MATRIX

	OPPORTUNITIES	THREATS
	<ol> <li>Potential to attract medical tourists as a revenue booster and contributor to Pakistan's growing medical tourism industry.</li> <li>Collaboration with research institutions to advance healthcare in a resource- efficient manner.</li> <li>Strategic partnerships with healthcare institutions and insurance providers to enhance patient referrals, aligning with economic realities</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Increased competition from other SRS-based radiotherapy centers' prestige and marketing tactics.</li> <li>Complex adherence to healthcare and nuclear regulations due to the evolving economic landscape.</li> <li>The threat of economic instability impacts the affordability of advanced medical treatments and the center's sustainability</li> </ol>
STRENGTHS	SO	ST
<ol> <li>Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre stands out for its commitment to providing cost- effective healthcare solutions. By implementing efficient management practices and leveraging economies of scale, the hospital manages to deliver high-quality medical services at affordable rates.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Leverage cost- effective healthcare solutions to attract medical tourism (both national and international).</li> <li>Collaborate with research institutions to advance healthcare efficiently</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Utilize advanced technology to minimize the impact of economic instability on treatments</li> </ol>

<ol> <li>Responsibility for embracing advanced technology, offering precision and non- invasive treatments for brain disorders.</li> <li>The expertise of medical professionals contributes to the center's reputation and attracts patients seeking specialized care.</li> </ol>	<b>3.</b> Form strategic partnerships with healthcare institutions and insurance providers for enhanced patient referral	
WEAKNESSES	WO	WT
<ol> <li>High initial costs and maintenance expenses of Gamma Knife technology potentially limit the center's reach.</li> <li>Staffing challenges impacting recruitment and retention of specialized personnel in the context of economic constraints.</li> <li>Like many healthcare institutions, Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre may face challenges related to resource constraints, impacting the accessibility of advanced treatments and services.</li> <li>The department may experience high patient volumes, leading to potential challenges in managing waiting times and providing</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Address financial challenges and resource constraints to capitalize on medical tourism</li> <li>Mitigating Staffing challenges by increasing in- house training</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Improve internal processes to address staffing challenges and patient overload during high patient volumes</li> </ol>

# Committee Structure

S.No	Name	Department	Designation	
1	Dr. M. Abid Saleem	Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre	H.O.D Consultant Neurosurgeon	
2	Dr. Amjad Hussain Shahani	Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre	Administrator	
3	Dr. S. Khoula Azmat	Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre	Consultant Neurosurgeon	
4	M. Atif Mansha	Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre	Assistant Professor Radiation Oncology	
5	Shahzaib Naeem	Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre	Medical Physicist	
6	Sohail Memon	Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre	Senior RTT	
7	Dr. S. Sohail Hussain	Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre	Senior Medical Officer	
8	Mr Fawad Hussain	Gamma Knife Radiosurgery Centre	Marketing Officer	